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MAY IT PLEASE THE COURT

1

This Memorandum of Counsel is filed on behalf of the Southland
Regional Council (Council) in respect of the appeals against the
Council's decision on the proposed Southland Water and Land Plan
(PSWLP).

In its Minute dated 17 August 2020, the Court directed the Council to file
an affidavit by Monday 24 August 2020 that, among other things,
includes a further report pursuant to s 32AA RMA on the Topic A
provisions.!

Mr McCallum-Clark, for the Council, has prepared an affidavit setting out
the information requested at paragraphs [4] through [6] of the Court’s
Minute dated 17 August 2020. However, given the amount of work
required, Mr McCallum-Clark has been unable to complete a review of
the relevant objectives and policies (including those amended by the
Court) pursuant to s 32AA RMA within the time allowed by the Court.?

Furthermore, Counsel notes that Mr McCallum-Clark in his capacity as
an independent expert witness may not be able to undertake a complete
review of all (relevant) objectives in accordance with s 32AA. In
particular, Counsel notes that Mr McCallum-Clark has previously filed
evidence stating that, in his opinion, his recommended objectives would
be the most appropriate way to achieve the purpose of the RMA. Mr
McCallum-Clark’s professional integrity might be compromised if he was
to now provide evidence with a further s 32AA assessment that
expressed an opinion that is different from the one he has previously
given.

In order to best assist the Court with respect to further s 32AA
evaluation, Counsel proposes that instead of Mr McCallum-Clark
preparing affidavit evidence in relation to the s 32AA evaluation, Council
planning staff and Mr McCallum-Clark jointly produce a s 32AA
evaluation report. Such a report would not be produced as

Mr McCallum-Clark’s evidence. Rather, it would instead be provided as
a report by the Council in order to assist the Court in complying with its

Minute of the Environment Court dated 17 August 2020, at [8(a)].
Minute of the Environment Court dated 17 August 2020, at [7] and [8(a)]-



duty to complete a s 32AA evaluation.® In essence, this report would be
provided in the same way as the Initial Planning Statement/updated
section 32 evaluation report was provided to the Court.

Extension of time requested

6

Counsel respectfully seeks an extension of time for the Council and Mr
McCallum-Clark to complete the requested s 32AA evaluation. As

Mr McCallum-Clark is on long-planned annual leave the week beginning
24 August 2020, Counsel seeks that the date for filing this s 32AA
evaluation be extended to Friday 4 September 2020.

Should the Court be willing to grant this extension, a consequential
amendment to the date for which any other party’s affidavit in reply is
due may be required. Counsel sought the parties’ views as to a
consequential extension of time for the filing of any affidavits in reply.
No party opposed there being such an extension. Accordingly, Counsel
suggests that the due date for these affidavits could be extended to
Friday 11 September 2020.

Content of s 32AA evaluation

8

10

In relation to the content of the s 32AA evaluation, Counsel considers
that Objectives 2, 3, 6, 7, 9/9A, 10, 13/13A/13B, 14, 17, and 18 require
review, due to them being amended since the Council decision.

While the Court has sought a review of the policies as well as the
objectives, Counsel does not consider that a review of the policies in
accordance with s 32AA is possible until the remaining provisions of the
pSWLP have been considered in Topic B. It is not possible to consider
whether individual policies, in isolation of the rule framework, are the
most appropriate way to achieve the objectives.

Accordingly, Counsel seeks that the Court’s directions be amended so
that the Council and Mr McCallum-Clark are only required to complete a
s 32AA evaluation of the objectives set out at paragraph [8] above.

Pursuant to ss 290(1) and 32AA.



Directions sought

11 For the reasons set out above, Counsel respectfully seeks that the
Court’s directions at paragraph [8(a)] of its Minute dated 17 August 2020
be amended as follows:

(a) The Regional Council, having conferred with the other parties, is to
file an affidavit by Monday 24 August 2020 in response to the
matters raised by the court in the first Interim Decision dated
20 December 2019 and again in its Minute dated 29 June 2020;

(b) Regional Council staff and Mr McCallum-Clark are to jointly
produce a s 32AA evaluation report on the following objectives:

(i)  Objective 2;

(i)  Objective 3;

(i)  Obijective 6;

(iv) Obijective 7;

(v) Obijective 9/9A,;

(vi) Obijective 10;

(vii) Objective 13/13A/13B;
(viii) Obijective 14;

(ix) Obijective 17; and

(x) Obijective 18.

This report is to be filed by Friday 4 September 2020; and

(c) Any party who wishes to do so, may file an affidavit in reply by
Friday 11 September 2020.

DATED this 21 day of August 2020

P A C Maw /A M Langford
Counsel for the Southland Regional Council
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